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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
ARTEMIS MEDICARE SERVICES LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of ARTEMIS MEDICARE SERVICES
LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2019, the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and
the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2019, and
its profit including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows and for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Information other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report of the Board of Directors including annexures

to Board’s Report, but does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the Ind As financial Statements, oy responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doj Ng 50, consider whether the other information jg materially inconsistent with the
financial Statements or oy knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to he materially
Misstated, [f based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there js 3 Mmaterial misstatement
of this other information, we are required to Feport that fact. We haye nothing to report i this regard,

. respect to the Preparation of th financia) statements that BIVe a true and fajr view of the
- financial Position, financig) performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and
: cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting Principles generally accepted ip India,
| including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) Specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the
J Companijes (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. Thig responsibility also includes

| The Com pany’s Board of Directors js responsible for the matters stated jn Section 134(5) of the Act with
ese Ind AS

In Preparing the Ind Ag financial Statements, Management jg responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as 3 going concern, disclosing, as applicable, Mmatters related to Boing concern and
using the 8oing concern basis of accounting unless Management eithey intends to liquidate the Company
Or to cease OPerations, or has no realistic alternative pyt to do so,

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process,
Auditor’s reésponsibility for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance aboyt whether the Ind AS financial statements as g

whole are free from material misstatement, whether dye to fraud or eérror, and to jssye an auditor's

report that includes our opinion, Reasonable as
cordance with

aggregate, they coulq reasonably be €Xpected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment ang maintain professjona
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* ldentify ang assess the risks of materijal misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether
due to fraud o error, design and perform audit procedures résponsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to proyide a basis for oyr opinion. The risk of not
detecting a materjal misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resy| ting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentiona] omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
ofinternal con trol,

*  Obtain an uuderstandn‘rg of interna] control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system jn place and the Operating effectiveness of such controls.




SCV & Co. LLP Continuation Sheet No. ........
Chartered Accountants

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
" based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue

as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure A", a statement on the matters specified in Paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other Comprehensive income),
the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2019
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March,
2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

()  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B".
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(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2019 has been paid/provided by the
Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V
to the Act.

(n) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
Ind AS financial statements - Refer Note 38 to the Ind AS financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses - Refer Note 28b(ii) to the Ind AS financial
statements.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For SCV & Co. LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FIRM REGISTRATION No. 000235N,/N500089

A
( RAJIV PURI)
PARTNER

PLACE: GURUGRAM
DATED: 26t April, 2019
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our Report of even date.

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full, including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets.

(b) Fixed assets verification has been conducted by the management during the year. All the fixed
assets of the Company have not been physically verified by the management during the year but
there is a regular phased programme of physical verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its fixed assets. According to the
information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the
Company as at the balance sheet date.

Physical verification of inventory has been conducted by the management at reasonable intervals
during the year. The discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical stocks and book
records, which in our opinion were not material, have been properly dealt with in the books of
account.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the books of account, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register
maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the paragraphs 3(iii)(a),
3(iii) (b) and 3(iii)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of investment
made in the subsidiary company during the year. The Company has not given any loans or
guarantees or security during the year which are covered under provisions of section 185 and
186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

According to the information and explanations provided by the management, we are of the
opinion that the company has not accepted any deposits from public covered under section 73 to
76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed there under.
Accordingly, the paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company in respect of Health
services, namely functioning as or running hospitals pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records
and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended, prescribed by the Central Government under sub-section
(1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the
prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a
detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or
complete.
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vii. (@) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the books of account, the Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, Goods and Service Tax,
duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable
to it to the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, employees' state insurance, income tax, Goods and Service Tax, duty of
custom, duty of excise, value added tax and cess and other material statutory dues were
outstanding, as on 31st March, 2019 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, and on the basis of our examination
of the books of account, there are no dues of income tax, Goods and Service Tax, duty of custom,
duty of excise, value added tax and cess which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute.

viil. Based on our audit procedures and on the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to financial institutions or to
any banks. The Company did not have any outstanding debentures, or loans or borrowings from
Government during the year.

ix. The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Based on our audit procedures and according to
information and explanations given by the management, the term loans were applied for the
purpose for which they were obtained.

X, According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or no
material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during
the year.

Xi, According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial

remuneration has been paid/ provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by
the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

Xii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
a nidhi company. Accordingly, provisions of paragraph 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

xiii, According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections
177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and details of such transactions have
been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

Xiv. According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly,
provisions of paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
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XV. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with him as referred to in section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, provisions of paragraph 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

Xvi. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act 1934. Accordingly, provisions of paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

For SCV & Co. LLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FIRM REGISTRATION No. 000235 ?500089
, Xy V) -
\ >
PLACE: GURUGRAM N (RAJIV PURI)
DATED: 26t April, 2019 PARTNER

TBERSHIP No. 084318
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Annexure “B” To the Independent Auditor’s Report

Annexure referred to in paragraph 2(f) under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (D) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ARTEMIS MEDICARE
SERVICES LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

For SCV & Co. LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FIRM REGISTRATION No. 000235N/N500089

PLACE: GURUGRAM
DATED: 26t April, 2019

( RAJIV PURI)
PARTNER




Artemis Medicare Services Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2019

Particulars Note No. As At As At
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Assets
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 2.1 33,337.35 30,558.97
Capital work-in-progress 4,943 22 4,317.48
Intangible assets 22 406.49 292.84
Financial assets
i) Investment 3.1 6.50 .
ii) Loans 32 255.86 148.25
iii) Other financial assets 33 3242 29.51
Non-current tax assets (Net) 4 668.80 390.95
Other non-current assets 5 203.74 714.92
Total non-current assets A 39,854.38 36,452.90
Current assets
Inventories 6 693.70 644 79
Financial assets
i. Trade receivables 7 7,844.06 5,556.40
ii. Cash and cash equivalents 8 811.00 269.78
iii. Bank balances other than (ii) above 9 314.39 948.16
iv. Loans 32 159.96 100.80
v. Other financial assets 33 514.70 494,94
Other current assets 5 755.55 717.27
Total current assets B 11,093.36 8,732.14
Total Assets C=A+B 50,947.74 45,185.04
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 10 2,103.50 2,103 50
Other equity 11 23,069.04 21,002.02
Total equity D 25,172.54 23,105.52
Liabilties
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i.) Borrowings 12 5,345.88 5,224 61
Provisions 13 496,96 359.84
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 14 2,597.51 1,747.22
Total non-current liabilities E 8,440.35 7,331.67
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i.) Borrowings 15 3.787.60 -
ii.) Trade payables
(A) Total Outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises 16 62.81 )
and Small Enterprises '
(B) Total Outstanding dues of Creditors other
than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises ke S0as 6iTaA
iii.) Other financial liabilities 17 2,337.10 3,916.36
Provisions 13 855.85 1,078.32
Other current liabilities 18 2,984 76 3,007.43
Total current liabilities F 17,334.86 14,747.85
Total liabilities G=E+F 25,775.20 22,079.52
Total equity and liabilities H=D+G 50,947.74 45,185.04
Significant accounting policies 1
See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements 2t043

As per our report of even date attached
For SCV & Co. LLP
Chartered Acgountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of Artemis Medicare Services Limited

i
Firm Registytion Number 000235N / N500089 (
M Mo el b/ @L [‘?‘*'
A/\ Onkar 87 Kanwar Dr. Devlina Chakravarty
/ [Chairman & Direct; [Executive Directo
[DIN: O
(Rajiv Puri)
Partner

Place : Gurugram
Dated: 26th April, 2019

| Sso0u

Sanjiv Kumar Kothari

[Chief Financial Officer] .é‘“

—TRakesh Kaushik

[Company Secretary]




Artemis Medicare Services Limited
Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2019

Particulars Note Year Ended Year Ended
No. 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Income
Revenue from operations 19 54,650.09 50,277.13
Other income 20 391.91 390.76
Total income (1) 55,042.00 50,667.89
Expenses
Purchases of pharmacy drugs & medical consumables - 12,940.94 12,083.89
Purchases of Stock in Trade - 145.16 137.15
Changes in inventories of Pharmacy drugs,
Medical consumables & Stock in Trade 21 (27.72) (8.31)
Employee benefits expense 22 9,687.31 9,044.65
Finance costs 23 1,103.83 946.14
Depreciation and amortization expense 24 1,992.29 1,847.08
Other expenses 25 25,460.37 23,070.53
Total expenses (1) 51,302.18 47,121.13
Profit before Tax H=(r-1) 3,739.82 3,546.76
Tax Expense 26
Current Tax 1,377.54 652.32
Deferred tax 285.51 217.42
Total Tax Expense (V) 1,663.05 869.74
Profit for the year V=(ll-1V) 2,076.77 2,677.02
Other comprehensive income
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss gain / (loss)
on remeasurement of defined benefit plans (Vi) (56.65) (17.56)
Deferred tax adjustment on revaluation of land (Vi) 27.11 14.30
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss (Vi) 19.79 6.14
Other comprehensive income for the year IX = (VI + VIl - VII) (9.75) 2.88
Total comprehensive income for the year X=V+IX 2,067.02 2,679.90
Earning Per Equity Share (Face Value of Rs. 10/- each)
Basic (Rs.) 9.87 12.73
Diluted (Rs.) 9.87 12.73

Significant accounting policies
See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached

For SCV & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm RegistraionyfNumber 000235N / N500089

(Rajiv Puri)
Partner
Membership No. 084318

Place : Gurugram
Dated: 26th April, 2019

Sanjiv Kumar Kothari
[Chief Financial Officer]

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of Artemis Medicare Services Limited

Curless borranl

Onkar S. Kanwar
[Chairman & Director,
[DIN : 0005

N/

. Dr. Devlina Chakravarty
[Executive Dire
[DIN : 07107875] -




Artemis Medicare Services Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2019

(Rs. in lacs)

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
As At As At
31st March, 2018 31st March, 2018

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 3,739.82 3,646 76
Adjustments:
Depreciation and amortization expenses 1,892.29 1,847.08
Interest Income (127.48) (144.00)
Finance Cost 890.00 739.55
Unclaimed Credit balances / provisions no longer required written back (320.30) (668.28)
Remeasurment through OCI (56.85) (17.56)
Allowance for Doubtful debts 39.42 (28.08)
Unrealised foreign exchange gain (net) 1.21 (58.30)
Deferred government grant (18.08) (386.41)
Loss on sale/scrap of fixed assets 210.51 78.51
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 6,350.74 4,909.27
Movements in working capital :
Changes in trade receivables (2,327.08) 487 94
Changes in inventories (48.91) (5.18)
Changes in loans (166.76) (29.13)
Changes in other financial assets (22.67) (231.56)
Changes in other non current & current assets 415.42 729.72
Changes in trade payables 944.11 1,253.24
Changes in Provisions (323.96) (475.80)
Changes in Other current liabilities / Other financial liabilities 235.80 641.83
Cash generated from opeations 5,056.69 7,280.32
Income tax paid/(refund) (986:27) (89.60)
Net cash generated from operating activites (A) 4,070.42 7,190.72
Cash flow from investing activity
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment / CWIP (5,725.70) (6,132.88)
Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 5.12 28.73
Maturity / (investments) of / in fixed deposits having original maturity of more than 3 months 633.77 (696.89)
Investment made in subsidiary (6.50) -
Interest received 127.48 144.00
Net cash (used in) investing activities (B) (4,965.83) (6,657.04)
Cash flow from financing activity
Proceeds from non current borrowings 2,655.80 1,323.30
Repayment of non current borrowings (4,116.76) (1,550.61)
Proceeds from current borrowings (net) 3,787.60 -
Interest paid (890.00) (739.55)
Net cash generated from financing activites (C) 1,436.64 (966.86)
Net increase in cash & cash equivalents (A+B+C) 541.22 (433.18)
Cash & cash equivalents as the beginning of the year 269.78 702.96
Cash & cash equivalents as the end of the year 811.00 269.78
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand 66.88 63.91
Balances with Banks:
On current accounts 744.12 205,87
On deposit accounts 314.39 948,16
Less: Fixed deposits not considered as cash equivalents (314.39) (948.16)
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents (Refer Note 8) 811.00 269.78

As per our report of even date attached

For SCV & Co. LLP

Chartered Accquntants

Firm Registrajign Number 000235N / N500089

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of Artemis Medicare Services Limited

At

(Rajiv Puri)
Partner
Membership No. 084318

Place : Gurugram
Dated: 26th April, 2019

Onkar S. Kanwar
[Chairman & Di
DIN_ 1

Sanjiv Kumar Kothari
[Chief Financial Officer,

Dr. Devlina Chakravarty
{Executive Direc
[DIN ; 07107875]

/'/-/
~_~Rakesh Kaushik

tor]

<~ [Company Secretary]



Artemis Medicare Services Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

Note No. 2.1
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT Rs. in Lacs
Particulars Freehold Land*  Building** Irrll-eraos::;?nt Computers F::::Lu:s& E tg"ri::nts E:::::::‘s Vebicles Total
Cost or deemed cost
As at 16t April, 2017 B 558 90 502620 28533 385 75 036.05 22382 922015 12844 29,404 53
Additions 37661 1258 263 83 6199 5261 3,568.34 17.05 435301
Disposals / Discarded during the year - (56.22) = (90.90) (9.75) (156 .87)
Adjusiment during the year # - - - 43.51 - 4351
As at 315t March, 2018 4,558 90 8,402 80 25169 650 58 698 a4 276.63 1275040 13574 33,734 28
Additions 3,703 54 55.63 59.57 255 10 . 5364 7092 62982 7578 4,904 00
Disposals / Discarded during {he year - (26 63) (189.27) - (18.77) (1.26) (26.78) (262.71)
Adjustment during the year # = - - - - 7562 752
As at 315t Mareh, 2019 13,262 44 8,431 B0 121,88 814 68 7337 34618 13,360.66 21152 3838300 |
DEPRECIATION
(As at st April, 2017 177,28 1171 71.80 15837 49 44 B47.83 614 142848
Charge for the year 187.43 27.62 119 10 101.98 56.04 1,277.74 2464 1.796.54
Disposals / Discarded during lhe year (11.02) . - (31.80) (6 89) {49.71)
As al 3151 March, 2018 364.71 2831 196 80 261,25 107 48 2,183.77 2288 317631
Charge for the year - 189 89 15,70 148 40 7191 67 99 1.396.11 2772 1,917.72
Disposals / Discarded during lhe year - (1.25) (35.60) - {2.87) (117) (6.40) - (47.29)
As at 31st March, 2018 - 543.35 a4 34530 33020 174,30 358348 5061 5045 74
NET BOOK VALUE
Az at 315t March, 2018 8,658.90 9,038,198 223.39 462.68 417.58 169.06 10,656.33 112.685 30,558.97
L'&E.‘!.' 31st March, 2019 13,262.44 8,878.55 113.58 §60.38 403.42 171.89 HIT7.8 160.91 33,337.35 |

*  Under the Previous GAAP (Indian GAAP), freehold land was carried in the balance sheet on the basis of revaluation performed as on 31.03.2016. The company has elected
to regard such value as deemed cost al the date of transition.

** |ncludes part of the building given on operating lease whose cost, depreciation for the year and WDV at the end of the year is nol segregated.

# comprises of borrowing cost of Rs. 7.52 Lacs (31 March 2018 : Rs. 43.51 Lacs). The borrowing cost capitalised during the year ended 31 March 2019 was Rs.65.92 Lacs
(31 March 2018 : Rs. 138.59 Lacs). The company capitalised this borrowing cost in the capital work-in-progress (CWIP). The amount of borrowing cost shown as other

adjustments in the above note reflects the amount of borrowing cost transferred from CWIP.

Note No. 2.2
INTANGIBLES ASSETS

Rs. in Lacs
Particulars ?ﬁ:i‘::’
Cost or deemed cost
As at 15t April, 2017 240 95
Addilions 13371
Disposals / Discarded during the year
As nt 31st March, 2018 383.66
Additions 188.42
Disposals / Discarded during lhe year (0.46)
As at 31st March, 2018 57162
AMORTIZATION
As at 15t April, 2017 40.28
Charge for the vear 5054
Disposals / Discarded during lhe year -
‘As at 31st March, 2018 80.62
Charge for the year 74 57
Disposals / Discarded during the year (0.26)
As at 318t March, 2019 165,13
NET BOOK VALUE
As at 31st March, 2018 262 B4

406.49

As at 31st March, 2018




Artemis Medicare Services Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

Note Particulars As At As At
No. 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Financial Assets
3.1 Investments (Non-Current)
Unquoted Investments
Investment in Equity Instruments (at cost)
investment in Subsidiary Company
i} Artemis Cardiac Care Private Limited 6.50 -
(65,000 (Nit as at March 31, 2018) Equity
Shares of Rs.10/- each) (all fully paid)
Total 6.50 -
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments and market value thereof
Aggregate value of unquoted investment 6.50 .
3.2 Loans
Non Current (Unsecured, Considered good)
Security Deposits 163.99 72.71
Others
Loans & advances to Employees * 91.87 75.54
Total 255.86 148.25
Current (Unsecured, Considered good)
Security Deposits 91.18 1.65
Others
Loans & advances to Employees * 68.78 99.25
159.96 100.80
* Loans & advances to Employees includes dues
from Executive Director, officers etc. (Refer Note 29) 97.50 1156.50
(As a part of service condition extended to all its eligible employees)
3.3 Other Financial Assets
Non Current
Fixed Deposit in banks having remaining maturity 32.42 29.51
of more than 12 months (Refer Note 9)
32.42 29.51
Current
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 16.15 16.08
Unbilled Revenue (Accrued operating income) 498.55 478.86
514.70 494.94




Artemis Medicare Services Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

Note Particulars As At As At
No. 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
4 Income tax assets
Non Current
Income Tax Recoverable (Net of provision for taxation) 668.80 390.95
Total 668.80 390.95
Note Particulars As At As At
No. 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
5 Other Assets
Non-Current (Unsecured, Considered good)
Capital Advances 93.42 45.26
Amount paid under protest/dispute - 500.00
Deposit with Service Tax Authorities 73.26 64.64
Prepaid Expenses 37.06 105.02
Total 203.74 714.92
Current (Unsecured, Considered good)
Advances / other receivables * 55.69 34.39
Balances with statutory / government authorities 25.11 73.43
Prepaid Expenses 140.34 32.09
Export Incentive receivable 534.41 577.36
755.55 717.27

* includes of Rs. 20.77 Lacs (As at 31st March, 2018 Rs. Nil ) due from the private limited company, in which director of
the company is director.

Note Particulars As At As At
No. 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
6 Inventories

(Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)
Stock of Pharmacy Drugs & Medical Cosumables 605.03 574.13
Stock in Trade (Pharmacy and Other ltems) 30.43 33.61
Stores & Spares 58.24 37.05
Total 693.70 644.79

-~
\\{'\
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Artemis Medicare Services Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

Note Particulars As At As At
No. 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs

7

Trade Receivables (Unsecured)

Current - at amortised cost

Considered good 7,844.06 5,556.40
Credit Impaired 210.74 171.32
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (expected credit (210.74) (171.32)
loss allowance)
7,844.06 5,556.40
Trade Receivables Includes :
Particulars 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
- Dues from Directors 0.48 2.98

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss towards expected risk of delays and default in collection.

No single customer accounted for more than 10% of the revenue as of 31st March, 2019 & 31st March, 2018. There is
no significant concentration of credit risk.

The Company uses judgements in making certain assumptions and selecting inputs to determine impairment of these
trade receivables, based on the Company's historical experience towards potential billing adjustments, delays and
defaults at the end of each reporting period. The provision matrix used to compute the expected credit loss allowance
for different categories of trade receivables is as follows.

Ageing Expected Credit Allowance %
0-1year 0% -- 50%
1-2year 25% -- 100%

2 -3 year 50% -- 100%

More than 3 vears 50% -- 100%

The Company has recorded an allowance of Rs. 210.74 lacs towards trade receivables. The Management believes that
there is no further provision required in excess of the allowance for doubtful debts.

The movement in allowance for expected credit loss in respect of trade receivables during the year was as follows:

As At As At
Allowance for expected credit loss 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Opening balance 171.32 199.40
Credit loss created /(reversed) 39.42 (28.08)
Closing balance 210.74 171.32

The Company's exposure to currency risks related to trade receivables are disclosed Refer Note No. 35 {ii).




Artemis Medicare Services Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

Note Particulars As At As At
No. 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
8 Cash & Cash Equivalents
Balance with Banks:
- In Current Accounts 744.12 205.87
Cash on hand 66.88 63.91
811.00 269.78
Note Particulars As At As At
No. 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
9  Other Bank Balances
Fixed Deposit in banks having original maturity of
more than 12 months and remaining maturity of 314.39 948.16
less than 12 months *
Fixed Deposit in banks having original maturity of
more than 12 months and remaining maturity of 3242 29.51
more than 12 months *
Amount disclosed under Other Non-Current Assets (32.42) (29.51)
Total 314.39 948.16

* Given as security of Rs. 91.86 Lacs ( As at 31st March, 2018 Rs. 52.23 Lacs ) to secure bank guarantee issued to

Customers.




Artemis Medicare Services Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

Note Particulars

No.

As At
31st March, 2019

As At
31st March, 2018

Rs. in Lacs

Rs. in Lacs

10

Equity Share Capital:

Authorised Shares (in nos.)
25,000,000 (Previous Year 25,000,000)
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- Each

Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up Shares (in nos.)

21,035,000 (Previous Year 21,035,000)
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up

Total issued, subscribed and fully paid up capital

2,500.00

2,103.50

2,103.50

a. Reconciliation of the equity shares at the beginning and at the end of the year

2,500.00

2,103.50

2,103.50

Reconciliation

As At

31st March, 2019

As At

31st March, 2018

Nos. Rs. in Lacs Nos. Rs. in Lacs
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 21,035,000 2,103.50 21,035,000 2,103.50
Shares issued during the year - - -
Shares bought back during the year = - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 21,035,000 2,103.50 21,035,000 2,103.50

b. Terms/rights attached to Equity Shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one
vote per share, where voting is held by show of hands. In case of Poll each holder of equity share is entitled to Number of votes against

Number of shares held.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the equity share

holders.

c¢. Shares held by holding / ultimate holding company and / or their subsidiaries / associates:

Name of the Shareholder

As At 31st March, 2019

As At 31st March, 2018

No. of Shares

Rs. in Lacs

No. of Shares

Rs. in Lacs

Artemis Health Sciences Limited - holding company

(including nominee shares)

21,035,000

2.103.50

21,035,000

2,103.50

d. Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% Equity Shares in the Company:

Name of the Shareholder

As At 31st March, 2019

As At 31st March. 2018

No. of Shares

% of Holding

No. of Shares

% of Holding

Artemis Health Sciences Limited - holding company

(including nominee shares)

21,035,000

100.00%

21,035,000

100.00%




Artemis Medicare Services Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

Note Particulars As At As At
No. 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
11 Other Equity:
Securities Premium
Balance as per last financial statements 11,132.50 11,132.50
Closing Balance (A) 11,132.50 11,132.50
Revaluation Reserve
Balance as per last financial statements 6,540.70 6,526.40
Less : Deferred tax adjustment on revaluation 2711 14.30
Closing Balance (B) 6,567.81 6,540.70
Retained earnings
Balance as per last financial statements 3,328.82 663.22
Add : Profit / (Loss) for the year 2,076.77 2,677.02
Add : Other comprehensive income arising from (36.86) (11.42)
re-measurement of defined benefit obligation
net of income tax
Balance at end of year ( C ) 5,368.73 3,328.82
23,069.04 21,002.02

Total Other Equity ( A + B +C)

Description of reserves

A. Security Premium

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The same is to be utilised in accordance with the

provisions of Section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013.

B. Revaluation Reserve

Revaluation Reserve represents freehold land revalued as on 31st March, 2016 as per independent valuer report.

C. Retained Earnings

Retained earnings represents the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfer of general reserve,

dividends or other distributions to shareholders etc.




Artemis Medicare Services Limited

Statoment of Changes in Equity

Equity Share Capital

Particulars Notes Amounts
Balance as at Aprll 1, 2017 10 2,103.50
Changes in equity share capilal during the year 10 -
Balance as at March 31, 2018 2,103.50
Changes in equity share capital during the year 10 -
Balance as at March 31, 2019 10 2,103.50
Other Equlty

Reserves and surplus Items of OCI
Particulars Nows | Gonerat | SO | Rovaluation | Retained | SNESOREIS | Tota

g8 benefit plans

Balance as at April 1, 2017 1 - 11,132.50 6,526.40 677.63 (14.41) 18,322.12
Profit for the year 1 - - 2,677 .02 - 2,677.02
Deferred tax adjustment on revlauation 11 = - 14.30 - 14.30
Other comprehensive income (OC!) (net of tax) 11 = - - (11.42) (11.42)
Balance as at March 31, 2018 11 - 11,132.50 6,540.70 3,354.65 (25.83) 21,002.02
Profit for the year 11 - - 2,076.77 - 2,076.77
Deferred tax adjustment on reviauation 1M - 27.11 - - 27.11
Other comprehensive income (OCl) (net of tax) 1 - - (36.86) (36.86)
Balance as at March 31, 2019 11 - 11,132.50 6.567.81 5.431.42 (62.69) 23,069.04
Significani accounting policies 1
See accompanying Noles to Financial Statements 2t043

As per our report of even date allached
For SCV & Co, LLP

Charered Accoylila
I'lrm Registratigy Nfrhher 000235N / N500089
m .

(Rajiv Puri)
Partner
Membership No, 084318

Place : Gurugram
Dated: 26th April, 2019

Bulee kaun—«g

Onkar S. Kanwar
[Chairman & [

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of Artemis Medicare Services Limited

18]}

Sanjiv Kumar Kolharl
[Chief Financial ificer]

A/.} -

@sh Kaushik
[Cormpany Secretary)

Dr. Devlina Chakravarty
[Executive Direclor]
[DIN : 07107875]




Artemis Medicare Services Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

Note Particulars As At As At
No. 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
12 Borrowings
Non Current Borrowings
Term Loans
From Banks
- Indian Rupee loans from Banks (secured
at amortised cost) 5,345.88 5,137.63
From Others
- Indian Rupee loan from NBFC (Unsecured) - 31.03
5,345.88 5,168.66
Deferred Payment Liabilities (secured) - 55.95
Total 5,345.88 5,224.61
Current Maturity
Term Loans
From Banks
- Indian Rupee loans from Banks (secured) 2,121.65 2,080.43
(at amortised cost)
From Others
- Indian Rupee loan from NBFC (Unsecured) 31.03 57.45
2,152.68 2,137.88
Deferred Payment Liabilities (secured) 132.18 1,728.00
2,284.86 3,865.88
Transferred to Other Financial Liability (Note 17) (2,284.86) (3,865.88)
Total - -

1. Indian Rupee Loans from Banks include :

a) Term loans of Rs. 7395.51 Lacs (As at 31st March, 2018 Rs. 7177.91 Lacs) from Scheduled Bank carries interest as
linked with Base Rate of banks.The loans are secured by the charge on entire movable fixed assets on pari passu
basis with existing lender, and Second charge on current assets. Further, these loans are collaterally secured by

the Corporate Guarantee of Artemis Health Sciences Limited.

b) Vehicle Loans of Rs. 75.52 Lacs (As at 31st March, 2018 Rs. 45.83 Lacs) from Scheduled Bank carries interest as
exclusive charge on the vehicles financed out of the said term loan. The rate of interest on aforesaid loan is linked

to Bank's Prime Lending Rate (PLR).

2. Indian Rupee loan from NBFC include :

Unsecured loan of Rs. 31.03 Lacs (As at 31st March, 2018 Rs. 88.48 Lacs and) from NBFC carries effective interest
rate of 10.49% per annum, payable in instalments, as per repayment schedule below.

3. Deferred Payment Liability :

Deferred payment liability of Rs. 132.18 Lacs (As at 31st March, 2018 Rs.1783.95 Lacs) is on account of purchase of
medical equipments and secured against letter of credit issued by HDFC Bank Limited, as per non fund based facility
with charge on entire movable fixed assets on pari passu basis with existing lender, and Second charge on current

assets. Further, these loans are collaterally secured by the Corporate Guarantee of Artemis Health Sciences Limited.

(Rs. in lacs)
Repayment Schedule FY 2019-20  |FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22  |FY 2022-23
Secured Loan
Term Loan - HDFC Bank Limited 2,090.75 2,090.75 2,090.74 1,123.27
Vehicle Loan - HDFC Bank Limited 30.90 22.19 21.80 0.63
Unsecured Loan
Unsecured Loan - CISCO Systems Capital (India) Pvt, Ltd. 31.03 - -
Deferred Payment Liability 132.18 - -

T —

Total PASCEIEERN 2,284.86 2,112.94 2,112.54 1,123.90
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Artemis Medicare Services Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

Note Particulars As At
No. 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
Non-Current Current Non-Current Current
13 Provisions
Provision for Employee Benefits
Leave Benefits 166.18 83.15 127.10 61.89
Gratuity 330.78 101.92 232.74 74.98
(Refer Note 34)
Other Provisions
Provision for Contingencies 670.78 - 941.45
(Refer Note 39)
Total 496.96 855.85 359.84 1,078.32
Rs. In Lacs
Note Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) in As at Credit / Credit / (Charge) to As at 31st
No.  relationto: Aprll 1, 2017 (Charge) to Other March,
Profit or loss Comprehensive 2018
Income

14 Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities) (Net)

The following is the analysis of deferred tax assets / liabilities recognised in statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income

Property, plant and equipment

(including intangible assets) (3,716.60) (191.89) 14.30 (3,894.19)
Other provisions 514.88 (185.92) - 328.98
Allowance for Doubtful Debts
(Expected credit loss) 69.00 (9.13) E 59.87
Employee Benefits 147.50 19.94 6.14 173.57
Unabsorbed Losses as per Income Tax act 582.75 (582.75) - -
MAT Credit Entitlement 903.03 652.32 - 1,655.35
Fair Value Adjustments 0.43 (1.13) (0.70)
Others (51.23) 81.13 - 29.90
(1,550.24) (217.42) 20.44 (1,747.22)
Note: Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities have been offset as they ae governed by the same taxation laws.
Rs. In Lacs
Note Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) in As at 31st Credit / Credit / (Charge) to As at 31st
No.  relationto: March, 2018 (Charge) to Other March,
Profit or loss Comprehensive 2019
Income

14 Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities) (Net)

The following is the analysis of deferred tax assets / liabilities recognised in statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income

Property, plant and equipment

(including intangible assets) (3,894.19) (144.08) 27.11 (4,011.16)
Other provisions 328.98 (94.55) - 234.43
Allowance for Doubtful Debts
(Expected credit loss) 59.87 13.77 - 73.64
Employee Benefits 173.57 44.97 19.79 238.33
MAT Credit Entitlement 1,655.35 (776.13) * - 779.22
Fair Value Adjustments (0.70) (4.35) - (5.06)
Others 29.90 63.20 - 93.09
(1,747.22) (897.17) 46.90 (2,597.51)

Note : Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities have been offset as they are governed by the same taxation laws.
* ¢ Including MAT credit utilisation forming part of Current Year Tax of Rs.611.67 Lacs.

Note Particulars As At

No. 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018

Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs

15 Borrowings

Bank Overdraft (secured) *

3,787.60

3,787.60




Artemis Medicare Services Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

Note Particulars As At As At
No. 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
16 Trade payables
Total Outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small
Enterprises (Refer Note 32) 62.81 .
Total Outstanding dues of Creditors other than Micro
Enterprises and Small Enterprises 7,306.74 6,745.74
Total T 7,369.55 674574
Note Particulars As At As At
No. 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
17 Other Financial Liabilities (secured)
Current
Term Loan (current maturity) (Refer Note 12) 2,152.68 2,137.88
Deferred payment liability (current maturity) 132.18 1,728.00
(Refer Note 12) 2,284.86 3,865.88
Interest Accrued but not due on borrowings 52.24 50.48
52.24 50.48
Total 2,337.10 3,916.36
Note Particulars As At As At
No. 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
18 Other Liabilities
Current
Advance from Patients / Others 1,217.99 949.70
Taxes payable * 306.23 319.83
Security Deposits 537.68 530.11
Deferred Government Grant * * 78.96 -
Other Payable * * * 843.90 1,207.79
Total 2,984.76 3,007.43

*  Taxes payable includes Withholding Tax, Goods & Services Tax.

** During the year company has obtained EPCG License against import of fixed assets. The company has recognised this grant
as deferred income at fair value, which is being amortised in proportion to fulfilment of Export Obligation (Refer note 38B).

*** Other payable includes payments due to employees, due on account of capital items, contribution of PF, ESI etc.




Artemis Medicare Services Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

Note Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
No. 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
19 Revenue from Operations
Sale of Services
Revenue from Health Care Services 52,493.48 47,354.33
Sale of Goods
Sale of Pharmacy Drugs & Medical Consumables 914.88 963.49
Sale of Stock in Trade (Pharmacy) 199.82 181.48
Other Operating Income
Income from Nursing Hostel 34.62 34.41
Income from Education & Training 60.73 108.68
Income from Export Incentive 612.60 925.97
Unclaimed credit balances / provisions
no longer required written back 320.30 696.36
Sale of Scrap 13.66 12.41
Total 54,650.09 50,277.13
Note Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
No. 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
20 Other Income
Interest Income 127.48 144.00
- From Bank deposits 68.88 48.19
- From Financial Assets carried at amortised cost 57.62 11.99
- From Others 0.98 83.82
Income from outsource activities (Cafeteria, Parking etc.) 105.37 96.74
Other Non-Operating Income (net of reimbursements) 115.05 101.33
Foreign Exchange Gain (Net) 44.01 48.69
Total 391.91 390.76




Artemis Medicare Services Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

Note Particulars
No.

Year Ended Year Ended

31st March, 2019

31st March, 2018

Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
21 (Increase) / Decrease in Inventories of
Pharmacy Drugs & Medical Consumables
Inventories at the beginning of the year 574.13 577.73
Inventories at the end of the year 605.03 (30.90) 574.13 3.60
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories of
Stock in Trade
Inventories at the beginning of the year 33.61 21.70
Inventories at the end of the year 30.43 3.18 33.61 (11.91)
Total (27.72) 8.31
Note Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
No. 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
22 Employee Benefits Expense
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 8,961.98 8,414.60
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 355.38 331.66
Gratuity Expenses 101.58 73.46
Employee Welfare Expenses 268.37 224,93
Total 9,687.31 9,044.65
Note Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
No. 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
23 Finance Costs
Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
- On term Loans 817.97 573.27
- Deferred Payment 68.39 163.57
Other Interest Expense 3.64 2.71
Other Borrowing Costs 4.87 4.87
Bank Charges 208.96 201.72
Total 1,103.83 946.14
Note Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
No. 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
24 Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,917.72 1,796.54
Amortization of intangible assets 74.57 50.54

Total

1,992.29

TR



Artemis Medicare Services Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019

Note Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
No. 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs
25 Other expenses

Consumption of stores & spares 133.23 160.26
Power & Fuel 1,102.35 1,107.12
Rent - Lease Rent 242.99 446.36
Equipment Hire Charges 147.59 176.30
Repairs and Maintenance

- Machinery 906.45 830.79

- Buildings 147.97 21.20

- Others 198.02 188.20
Rates & Taxes 48.63 59.89
Legal & Professional Consultation Fees 448.35 376.56
Merger expenses 112.19 -
Fee paid to doctors 11,940.61 10,781.63
Printing & Stationery 148.04 162.74
Patient Facility Maintenance 732.91 768.85
Patient Food & Beverages Expenses 548.28 660.19
Outsource Lab Test Charges 387.55 325.77
Security Charges 253.61 270.96
Professional Medical Consultancy 6,140.54 5,189.76
Provision for Contingencies - 7.08
Travelling & Conveyance 614.69 541.84
Advertisement & Business Promotion 355.37 348.18
Patients Amenities 221.52 242.02
Communication Expenses 70.58 75.16
Charity & Donation 42.74 40.00
Insurance 48.92 42.14
Clinical Research Expenses 53.00 58.16
Guest House Expenses 0.52 0.39
Auditors Remuneration
- Audit Fee 11.51 10.39
- Tax Audit Fee 2.89 2.60
- Others Services & Certification 5.20 8.00
Directors Sitting Fees 14.32 13.09
CSR Expenses 60.64 36.41
Newspaper & Periodicals 22.74 10.60
Bad Debts Written Off 17.81 17.01
Allowance for Doubtful Debts 39.42 -
Loss on Sale / Scrap of Property, Plant and
Equipment (Net) 210.51 78.51
Miscellaneous Expenses 28.68 12.37
Total 25,460.37 23,070.53
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Note 26 INCOME TAX
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Rs. in Lacs Rs. in Lacs

Amount recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss
Current Tax

(a) In respect of the current year 1,377.54 652.32
(b) Earlier years tax provision written back

1,377.54 652.32

Deferred Tax

(a) In respect of the current year 285.51 217.42
Tax expense recognised through statement of profit and loss 1,663.05 869.74
Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Deferred tax

In respect of the current year 46.90 20.43
Tax credit recognised through Other Comprehensive Income 46.90 20.43
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

Profit before tax 3,739.82 3,546.76
Enacted income tax rate in India 34.944% 34.608%
Income tax calculated 1,306.84 1,227.46
Effect of expenses not deductible in determing taxable profit 356.21 (369.62)
Others - 11.91

Income tax expense recognised in statement of profit & loss 1,663.05 869.74




Artemis Medicare Services Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019
Note No.

1.1 Nature of operations
Artemis Medicare Services Limited ("The Company”) was incorporated on 18th May, 2004. The Company is engaged in the
business of managing and operating of multi specialty hospitals and commenced its commercial operation by setting up Artemis
Hospital (formerly Artemis Health Institute) at Gurugram on July 16, 2007.

1.2 Application of New and revised Ind ASs
As at the date of authorisation of the financial statements, the Company has not applied the following revisions to the Ind AS that
have been issued by MCA but are not yet effective:

IND AS 116 Leases :

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 116, Leases. Ind AS 116 will replace the existing leases
Standard, Ind AS 17 Leases, and related Interpretations. The Standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract i.e., the lessee and the lessor. Ind AS 116 introduces a single
lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognize assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than twelve
months, unless the under lying asset is of low value. Currently, operating lease expenses are charged to the statement of Profit &
Loss. The Standard also contains enhanced disclosure requirements for lessees. Ind AS 116 substantially carries forward the
less or accounting requirements in Ind AS 17. The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 116 is annual periods beginning on or
after April 1, 2019,

The standard permits two possible methods of transition:

Full relrospective — Retrospectively to each prior period presented applying Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors

Modified retrospective — Retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of initially applying the Standard recognized at the date of
initial application.

Under modified retrospective approach, the lessee records the lease liability as the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the right of use asset either as:

- Its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement date, but discounted at lessee'’s incremental
borrowing rate at the date of initial application or

- An amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments related to that lease
recognized under Ind AS 17 immediately before the date of initial application. Certain practical expedients are available under
both the methods.

On completion of evaluation of the effect of adoption of Ind AS 116, the Company is proposing to use the '‘Modified Retrospective
Approach’ for transitioning to Ind AS 116 - Leases

The effect on adoption of Ind AS 116 would be insignificant in the company's financial statements.

Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments :
On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
which is to be applied while performing the determination of taxable profit (or loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax

credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12. According to the appendix,
companies need to determine the probability of the relevant tax authority accepting each tax treatment or group of tax
treatments, that the companies have used or plan to use in their income tax filing which has to be considered to compute the
most likely amount or the expected value of the tax treatment when determining taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax
losses, unused tax credits and tax rates.

The standard permits two possible methods of transition - i) Full retrospective approach — Under this approach, Appendix C will
be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in accordance with Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes
in Accounting Estimates and Errors, without using hindsight and ii) Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initially applying
Appendix C recognized by adjusting equity on initial application, without adjusting comparatives.

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The Company will
adopt the standard on April 1, 2019 and has decided to adjust the cumulative effect in equity on the date of initial application

i.e. April 1, 2019 without adjusting comparatives,
The effect on adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C would be insignificant in the company's financial statements

Amendment to Ind AS 12 — Income taxes :
On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to the guidance in Ind AS 12, ‘Income Taxes', in connection with
accounting for dividend distribution taxes.

The amendment clarifies that an entity shall recognise the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income
or equity according to where the entity originally recognised those past transactions or events

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The Company does not have any impact
on account of this amendment.
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Amendment to Ind AS 19 — plan amendment, curtailment or settlement-

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to Ind AS 19, 'Employee Benefits’, in connection with accounting for plan
amendments, curtailments and settlements.

The amendments require an entity:

- to use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the period after a plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement; and

- to recognise in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, any reduction in a surplus, even if that surplus was
not previously recognised because of the impact of the asset ceiling.

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The Company does not have any impact
on account of this amendment.

Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

a) Statement of compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance of Indian Accounting Standards (IndAS) notified under section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act”) read together with Companies (IND-AS) Rules, 2015.

The financial statements were authenticated by the Company's Board of Directors on 26th April, 2019. Details of the accounting policies are
included in Note 1.

b) Basis of preparation and presentation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair
values at the end of each reporting period.

Historical Cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange of goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technigue. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company taken into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and / or
disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a basis.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

. Level 2inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the assets or liabilities either directly or
indirectly; and

* Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

c) Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost (or revalued amounts, as the case may be), less accumulated depreciation and
impairment loss, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the property, plant and equipment
to its working condition for its intended use. Borrowing costs relating to acquisition of property, plant and equipment which takes
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are also included to the extent they relate to the period till such property,
plant and equipment are ready to be put to use.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the case price equivalent at the recognition date. If payment is deferred beyond normal
credit terms, the difference between the cash price equivalent and the total payment is recognised as interest over the period of credit, unless
such interest is capitalised as per borrowing cost.

The Company identifies and determines separate useful life of each major component of the property, plant and equipment, if they have useful
life that is materially different from that of the remaining asset, as per Schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013.

d) Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment

Depreciation on all of the property, plant and equipment is provided using the straight line method at the rates prescribed by Schedule Il of the
Companies Act, 2013 and / or useful life estimated by management supported by technical valuer's independent assessment. The

management believes that depreciation rates currently used fairly reflect its estimates of the useful lives and residual values of property, plant
and equipment.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment costing less than Rs. 5,000/-
The company is depreciating property, plant and equipment costing less than Rs. 5,000/- over their useful life same as prescribed by Schedule
Il to the Companies Act, 2013,

Depreciation commences when the fixed assets are ready for their intended use. Depreciation on all PPE except land are provided on a
straight line based on the estimated useful life of PPE, which is as follows:




Assets Useful Life of property, |Useful Life of property, plant
plant and equlpment as per and equipment as per
Schedule Il Management supported by
Technical Valuer's Estimate
Bulldings :
- with RCC 60 Years
- Temporary Structure {Porta Cabin) 30 Years
- Tubewell / Barewell 5 Years
Plant & Machlnery :
- Electric Medical Equipments 13 Years
- Other Medical Equipments 15 Years
- Other Plant & Machinery 15 Years
Office Equipments 5 Years
Computers & Data Processing Unlts
- Desktop & Laptops 3 Years
- Servers & Network 6 Years
Vehlcles 8 Years
Furnitures & Flttings 10 Years
Electrlcal Installations & Equipments 10 Years

Leasehold Improvements including renovation done on shared facilities have been depreciated as per the useful life ascertained
or over the primary period of lease / contract, whichever is shorter.

e) Intanglble Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of other consideration given to acquire an asset at the time of its
acquisition or construction, or, when applicable, the amount attributed to that asset when initially recognised in accordance with the specific
requirements of other Indian Accounting Standards.

Software
Cost of software is amortized over a period of 3-6 years, being the estimated useful life as per the management estimates.

The cost of intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated useful life of six years.
f) Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an properly, plant and equipment that necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective property, plant and
equipment. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds

g) Impalrment

At the end of each reporting period, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication based on internal/ external factors that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet avallable for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the statement of profit
and loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss,

h) Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.




Where the Company Is the lessee

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially ali the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased items are classified as operating
leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected
inflationary cost increases, such increases are recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expenss in the period in which they are incurred.

Leases where the lessor effectively transfers substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as finance leases
and are capitalized at the inception of the lease term at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and present value of minimum lease
payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognized as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.
Lease management fees, legal charges and other initial direct costs of lease are capitalized.

Where the Company is the lessor
Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating

leases. Assets subject to operating leases are included in PPE. Rental income on operating lease is recognized in the statement of profit
and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with expected general
inflation to compensate for the company’s expected inflationary cost increases, such increases are recognised in the year in which such

Costs, including depreciation, are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased assets and recognised on a straight line basis over the lease

i) Inventorles

Inventories of Pharmacy Drugs & Other Items, Medical Consumables and the Stores and Spares are valued at lower of cost and net
realizable value. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

Traded goods are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred to bring
inventories to their present locations and conditions. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

J) Revenue recognition

The Company derives revenue primarily from Healthcare Services through operating of multi-speciality Hospital.

Effective April 1, 2018, the Company adopted Ind AS 115 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers” using the cumulative catch up transition
method, applied to contracts that were not completed as of April 1, 2018. In accordance with the cumulative catch-up transition method, the
comparatives have not been retrospectively adjusted. The following is a summary of new and/or revised significant accounting policies related
to revenue recognition. The effect on adoption of Ind AS 115 was insignificant as the revenue is of short term nature and performance

obligations are satisfied upon delivery of service/goods.

Revenue is measured at the transaction price. Revenue is reduced for returns, trade allowances for deduction, rebates, value added taxes
and amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Salo of Phiarmacy Drugs and Medieal Supplies including Traded Goods

Revenue is recognized as and when Pharmacy Drugs, Medical Supplies and Traded goods are sold. Revenue from the sale of Pharmacy
Drugs, Medical Supplies and Traded good are recognised when control of the goods has passed to the buyer i.e. at the point of sale /

to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods.
Sale is net of sales returns, discounts and goods & services tax.

Income from Operations

Revenue is recorded when the performance obligation are satisfied. For outpatient customers services are simultaneously received and
consumed by the patient. For inpatient customers, revenue is recognized as serviced are performed over the period. Revenue for the
ongoing services at the reporting date is recognised as unbilled revenue. The income is stated net of discount and price differences,

as per terms of contract.

Interest
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable interest rate.

Income from Nursing Hostal
Revenue is recognized as per contractual arrangement with nursing staff using the hostel facilities.

Income from Lease Rentals & Oulsourced Facilities
Revenue is recognized in accordance with the terms of lease agreements entered into with the respective lessees

Income from Service Export from India Scheme (SEIS)

Income from ‘Service Export from India Scheme' is recognized on accrual basis as and when eligible services are performed and
convertible foreign exchange is received on a net basis.

[ncopne from Chnfcal Research
Income from clinical research is recognised as and when the services are rendered in accordance with the terms of the respective
agreements.




Income from Sponsorships
Sponsorship income is recognized when the underlying obligations are completed as per contractual terms.
k) Foreign currency transactions

In preparing the financial statements, transaction in currencies other than the Company's functional currency (foreign currencies) are
recognized at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

At the end of each reporting period
i) Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date,

iiy Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when
the fair value was determined.

iify Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they arise except exchange
differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future productive use, which are included in the cost of
those assets when they are regarded as adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currecy borrowings.

1) Employees Benefits

Short term emplovee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving services are classified as short-term employee benefits. These benefits
include salary and wages, bonus and exgratia. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for employee
services is recognized as an expense as the related service is rendered by the employees.

Defined contribution plans
A defined contribution plan is post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified contributions to separate entity and has no

obligation to pay any further amounts. The Company makes specified obligations towards employee provident fund and employee state
insurance to Government administered provident fund scheme and ESI scheme which is a defined contribution plan. The Company's
contributions are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss during the period in which the employee renders the related
service.

Defined benefit plans

The Company's gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of a defined benefit plan is
calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned and returned for services in the current and prior periods;
that benefit is discounted to determine its present value. The calculation of Company’s obligation under the plan is performed periodically
by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service or the gain or
loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and utilize it in future service periods or receive
cash compensation on termination of employment. Since the employee has unconditional right to avail the leave, the benefit is classified as a
short term employee benefit. The Company records an obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders
the services that increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit
credit method

m) Income taxes

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

i) Current Tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of
profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The current tax is calculated using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period,

Current income-tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted
in India and tax laws prevailing in the respective tax jurisdictions where the Group operates

iy Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for ali taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax is measured based on tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities. Deferred tax
assets are recognized only to the extent, that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which
such deferred tax assets can be realized. In situations where the company has unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax losses, all
deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is virtual certqf_ntygipponed by convincing evidence that they can be realized against future
taxable profits. |

; W




The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all part of assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax is measured based on tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities.

i)  Current and deferred lax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognized in the statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

n) Expenditure on new projects

Expenditure directly relating to construction activity is capitalized. Indirect expenditure incurred during construction period is
capitalized as part of the indirect construction cost to the extent to which the expenditure is indirectly related to construction or
is incidental thereto. Other indirect expenditure (including borrowing costs) incurred during the construction period which is not
related to the construction activity nor is incidental thereto is charged to the Statement of profit & loss

o) Earnings Per share

Basic earnings per share is being calculated by dividing net profit or loss for the year (including prior period items, if any) attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of alt dilutive potential equity shares.

p) Operating Cycle

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of assets and their realisation in cash or
cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as
current and non-current.

q) Financial Instrument

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification
of the financial assets.

Financial Assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost (except for financial assets that are
designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

i) the assets is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows ; and

ii) the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial Assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (except for
financial assets that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

i) the assets is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets; and

ii) the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss for FVTOCI financial assets. For the purposes of recognising foreign exchange gains and losses,
FVTOCI financial assets are treated as financial assets measured at amortised cost, Thus, the exchange differences on the amortised cost are
recognised in profit or loss and other changes in the fair value of FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of ‘Reserve for financial assets through other comprehensive income'. When the investment is disposed of,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in this reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.




All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition,

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL. Interest
income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the “Other income” line item.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI criteria may be designated as at FVTPL
upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise
from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases. The Company has not designated any
debt instrument as at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial
asset and is included in the ‘Other income' line item. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognised when the Company's right to
receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend
does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost, debt
instruments at FVTOCI, lease receivables, trade receivables, and other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset, and
financial guarantees not designated as at FVTPL,

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights. Credit loss is
the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Company expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate
for purchased or originated creditimpaired financial assets). The Company estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the
financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) through the expected life of that financial instrument.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit
risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowanca for that financial instrument at an amount equal to
12-month expected credit losses. 12-month expected credit losses are portion of the life-time expected credit losses and represent the
lifetime cash shortfalls that will result if default occurs within the 12 months after the reporting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that are
predicted over the next 12 months.

If the Company measured loss allowance for a financial instrument at lifetime expected credit loss model in the previous period, but
determines at the end of a reporting period that the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition due to improvement in
credit quality as compared to the previous period, the Company again measures the loss allowance based on 12-month expected credit
losses

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Company uses the
change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected
credit losses. To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and
supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial
recognition

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope
of Ind AS 115, the Company always measures the loss aflowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the Company has used a practical
expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into
account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward looking information.

The impairment requirements for the recognition and measurement of a loss allowance are equally applied to debt instruments at FVTOCI
except that the loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income and is not reduced from the carrying amount in the balance
sheet,

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.




On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial
asset

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Company retains an option to repurchase part of a transferred
asset), the Company allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under
continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer.
The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for
the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be
recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

The fair value of financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at
the end of each reporting period. For foreign currency denominated financial assets measured at amortised cost and FVTPL, the exchange
differences are recognised in statement of profit & loss since there are no designated hedging instruments in a hedging relationship.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition or then the continuing
involvement approach applies, financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company, and commitments issued by the Company to provide a
loan at below-market interest rate are measured in accordance with the specific accounting policies set out below.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either contingent consideration recognised by the Company as an
acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies or is held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

ii) oninitial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the company manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

iii) itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the ‘Other income’ line item.

However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of change in the fair value of the financial
liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is recognised in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of
the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss, in which case these effects of changes in credit risk are recognised in profit or loss. The remaining amount of change in the fair value of
liability is always recognised in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that are recognised in other
comprehensive income are reflected immediately in retained earnings and are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

Gains or losses on financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments issued by the Company that are designated by the Company as at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are
determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the
‘Finance costs’ line item.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including ail fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by a group entity are initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at FVTPL, are
subsequently measured at the higher of:

i) the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS 109; and

i) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with the principles
of Ind AS 115.
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Commitments to provide a loan at a below-rmarkel interest rate

Commitments to provide a loan at a below-market interest rate are initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at FVTPL,
are subsequently measured at the higher of:

i) the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS 108; and

ii) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with the principles
of Ind AS115.

Foreian exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at the end of each reporting period,
the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amortised cost of the instruments and are recognised in ‘Other income'.

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at
the end of the reporting period. For financial liabilities that are measured as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair
value gains or losses and is recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired
An exchange between with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the
original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing
financial liability (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in statement of profit & loss.

r) Provislons & Contingencles

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that
the company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time
value of money is material). When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a
third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.

s) Contingent Llabllities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more of uncertain future events beyond the control of company or a present obligation that is not recognized

because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the an obligation. A contingent liability also arises

in the extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably its existence

in the financial statements. Company does not recognize the contingent liability but disclosed its existence in financial statements.

t} Government Grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and such grants can reasonably have a value placed upon them

Government grants are recognised in statement of profit & loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Company recognises as
expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

u) Cash and Cash Equlvalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement are comprise of cash at bank and cash in hand and short-term
investments with an original maturity of three months or less. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance
sheet and forms part of financing activities in the cash flow statement. Book overdraft are shown within other financial liabilities in the
balance sheet and forms part of operating activities in the cash flow statement.

v) Critical Accounting Estimates

THé_impairment_provisions for trade receivables is based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Company uses
judgements in making certain assumptions and selecting inputs to determine impairment of these trade recsivables, based on the
Company's historical experience towards potential billing adjustments, delays and defaults at the end of each reporting period.

Segmental Reporting
Operaling segments

Ind AS 108 “Operating Segment” ("Ind AS 108") establishes standards for the way that public business enterprises report information about
operating segments and related disclosures about products and services, geographic areas, and major customers. Based on the
‘management approach” as defined in Ind AS 108, Operating segments are to be reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM).The CODM evaluates the Company’s performance and allocates resources on
overall basis. The Company’s sole operating segment is therefore ‘Medical and Healthcare Services'. Accordingly, there are no additional
disclosure to be provided under Ind AS 108, othgr than those already provided in the financial statements.




Geogruphical information

Geographical information analyses the company's revenue and non current assets by the Company's country of domicile (i.e. India) and
other countries. In presenting the geographical information, segment revenue has been based on the geographical location of the customers
and segment assets which have been based on the geographical location of the assets.

Secondary Segment - Geographical Location of customers

India Qutside India Total
Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year| Current Year |Previous Year
(Rs.inlacs) | (Rs.inlacs) | (Rs.inlacs) | (Rs.inlacs) | (Rs.inlacs) | (Rs.in lacs)

[Revenue by geographical markets 33,340.79 32,366.33 21,309.30 17.910.80 54,650.09 50,277.13
[Non current assets 39,559.60 36,275.13 “ - 39,559.60 36,275.13

28 Capltal and Other Commitments (Rs. In Lacs)
As at 31st March, 2019 As at 31st March, 2018

a) Capltal Commlitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on 4,177.80 4,895.57
capital account not provided for (Net of Advances)

by  Other Commitments
i) For commitments relating to lease arrangement, please refer Note 30.

ii) The Company does not have any long term commitments or material non-cancellable contractual commitments/contracts, including
derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

c) Expenditure on Corporate Soclal Responsibllity (CSR)

i} Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year ended 31st March, 2019 Rs. 64.12 Lacs
i) Amount spent during the year ended 31st March, 2019 : (Rs. In Lacs)
Particulars Paid (A) Yet to be paid ( B ) Total (A+B)

(i) Construction / acquisition of any
property, plant and equipment

(i) On purposes other than (i ) above 60.64 3.48 64.12
iii) Details of related party transactions :

a) Contribution during the year ended 31st March, 2019 Rs. 45.83

b) Payable as at 31st March, 2019 Rs.  Nil

29 Related party disclosure
a) Name of related parties
Partles where control exlsts Irrespectlve of whether transactions have occurred or not

Ultimate Parent Company Artemis Global Life Sciences Limited

Holding Company Artemis Heaith Sciences Limited

Fellow Subsidiary Company Athena Eduspark Limited

Names of other related partles with whom transactlons have taken place durlng the year

Subsidiary Company Artemis Cardiac Care Pvt. Ltd. (w.e.f. 14th Jan, 2019)
Key Management Personnel Mr. Onkar S. Kanwar (Chairman & Director)

Dr. Devlina Chakravarty (Executive Director)

Mr. Sanjiv Kumar Kothari (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Navneet Goel (Head - Legal & Company Secretary) upto 3rd Feb, 2019

Mr. Rakesh Kaushik (Chief Legal Officer & Company Secretary) from 4th Feb, 2019

Relatives of Key Managerial Personnal Mr. Neeraj Singh Kanwar (Non-Executive Director)
Mrs. Shalini Kanwar Chand (Non-Executive Director)
Mrs. Taru Kanwar
Mrs. Devarchana Rana

Non-Executive Directors Dr. Nirmal Kumar Ganguly (Non-Executive Director)
Dr. § Narayan (Independent Director)
Dr. Sanjaya Baru (Independent Director)
Mr. Akshay Kumar Chudasama (Independent Director)

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key Apolio Tyres Ltd.
management personnel or their relatives Apollo International Ltd.
Artemis Health Sciences Foundation
Artemis Education & Research Foundation
Swaranganga Consultants Pvt. Ltd
Z & A Medical Tourism Pte Ltd.
Premedium Pharmaceuticals Pvt. Ltd. (w.e.f. 9th Oct, 2018)




b) Transactions during the year
(Rs. In Lacs)

Enterprises owned or
Key Management Personnel | significantly influenced by
and their relatives key management personnel

or their relatives

31st March, | 31st March, | 31st March, | 31stMarch, | 31st March, 31st March, 31st March, | 31st March,

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2018 2018

Ultimate Parent Company /

FENCTER Holding Company

Subsidiary Company

Reimbursement of Expenses
incurred on behalf of the
Company *

Arlemis Health Sciences |.td, 2.33 0.07 - - - - - -
Artemis Health Sciences
Foundation - - - - - - 232 -
Artemis Education & Research
Foundation - - - - - - 38.96 43.34
Artemis Cardiac Care Put Ltd - - 20.77 - E - - B
CSR Expenses

Artemis Health Sciences
Foundation - - - - - - 45.83 8.42
Corporate Guarantee Fee
Artemis Health Sciences Ltd. 4.87 4.87 - - - - - -
Recovery of Loans & Advances
Devlina Chakravarty - - - - 12.00 12.00 - -
Sanjiv Kumar Kothari - - - - 6.00 6.00 - -
Lease Expenses *

Artemis Global Life Sciences
Ltd 48.14 44 98 - - - - -
Swaranganga Consultants P
Ltd - - - - - - 12.20 262.19
Investment in Subsidiary
Artemis Cardiac Care Pvt Ltd - - 6.50 - - - = -
Sale of Services / License
Total Transactions - - - - 31.31 78,58 855.60 441.48

Transactions in excess of 10%

Apollo Tyres Ltd. - - - - - - 845.94 437.18
Purchase of services / goods *
Apollo Tyres Ltd. - - - - - - 7.08 7.08

Davarchana Rana - - - - 6.20 6.00 - -

Z & A Medical Tourism Pte Ltd.
3 & i S . - - 85.38

Premedium Pharmaceuticals
Pvt Ltd - - - - - - 49.48 -
Donation Paid

Artemis Education & Research

Foundation - - - - - - 40.00 40,00
Artemis Health Sciences
Foundation - - - - - - 274 -
Directors' Sitting Fees paid
Onkar S Kanwar - - - - 1.40 1.20 - -
Neeraj Singh Kanwar - - - - 0.80 1.60 - -
Shalini Kanwar Chand - = - = 260 2 60 = -
S. Narayan - - - - 2.80 1.80 - -
Sanjaya Baru - a. - - 1.00 0.60 - -
Nirmal K. Ganguly - - - - 0.80 1.20 - =
Saurabh Srivastav - - - - 0.40 - - -
Akshay Kumar - - - - 2.40 2,20 - -
Key management personnel-
Compensation S
Devlina Chakravarty - - - - 459.77 403.59 - -
Sanjiv Kumar Kothari - - - - 73.15 55.89 - -
Rakesh Kaushik & = - - 27.50 - - -
Mavneet Goel - - - - 64.93 3573 - -
Defined benefit obligation
_Postemployment benefits - - - - 52.01 47.48 - -
Short-term benefits - - - - 23.30 20.60 - -
Total compensation - ~ - - 75.31 68,08 - -
Dr. Devlina Chakravarty - - - - 64.21 51.49 - -
Mr. Sanjiv Kumar Kothari - - - - 10.21 711 - -
Mr. Navneet Goel - - - - - 9.48 - -
Mr. Rakesh Kaushik - - - - 0.89 - - -
Total compensation - - - - 75.31 68.08 - -
* Transactions are reported including taxes. 6 are 3
)
S &
L .
2 3]
-,



(Rs. In Lacs)

. 31st March, 31st March,
Balance Payable Name of Entity 2019 2018
Ultimate Parent Company Artemis Global Life Sciences Limited - 11.22
Holding Company Artemis Health Sciences Limited 4.38 4.31
Key Management Personnel and their relatives Relatives of Director & KMP 040
Apollo Tyres Ltd. 7.08 6.48
Enterprises owned or significantly influenced | Apollo International Ltd. 1.49 0.45
by key management personnel or their relatives| Swaranganga Consultants P Ltd 0.22
Premedium Pharmaceuticals Pvt. Ltd. 49.48
(Rs. In Lacs)
. 31st March, 31st March,
Balance Recoverable Name of Entity 2019 2018
Relatives of Director & KMP 0.48 17.38
Key Management Personnel and their relatives| Devlina Chakravarty 62,14 72.90
Sanjiv Kumar Kothari 30.06 36.87
Enterprises owned or significantly influenced | Apollo Tyres Ltd. 438.92 1.85
by key management personnel or their relatives| Artemis Education & Research Foundation 38.00 42,36
Swaranganga Consultants P Ltd 84.00 84.00
Artemis Cardiac Care Pvt. Ltd. 14.82 -

30 Operating Leases
a) Assets taken on lease (Cancellable)
The Company has taken cancellable lease for premises in the nature of buildings, hostels and guest houses etc. under operating lease. All
premises taken on operating lease are on cancellable terms after initial lock in period as per each respective lease and thereafter may be
renewed by mutual consent on mutually agreed terms.

Total lease payments recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss for the year is Rs. 242,99 Lacs (previous year Rs. 446 36 Lacs).

(Rs. In Lacs)
Minimum Lease Rentals As at 31st As at 31st
Payable for lock in period March, 2019 March, 2018
Not later than one year - 2.29

After one year but not more than five years - -

b) Assets glven on Lease
The Company has leased out some portion of hospital premises as outsourced activities for a period of 1 to 9 years. The returns are fixed as
well as based on a certain percentage of net sales of the lessee from the leased premises.

Total lease amount received / receivable in the respect of above leases recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss for the year are Rs,
104.69 Lacs (Previous year Rs. 94.91 Lacs).

(Rs. In Lacs)
Minimum Lease Rentals As at 31st As at 31st
Receivable during lock in March, 2019 March, 2018
period
Not later than one year 4,07 3.88
Later than one year but not later than five years 3.17 7.24

Later than five vears = -
Note : The lease payment recognized in statement of profit & loss under non-cancellable operating lease represent only the fixed
component / minimum recoverable of leases as variable component recsivable based on net sales from lease premises cannot be

determined.

31 Earning Per Share (EPS) (Rs. In Lacs)

Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Net profit after Tax
Profit / (Loss) attributable to the Equity Shareholders 2,076.77 2,677.02
Basic / Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares
Outstanding during the year 21,035,000 21,035,000
Earning Per Share (in Rupees)
- Basic 9.87 12.73
- Diluted 9.87 12.73

Nominal value of Equity Shares 10.00 10.00
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The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises have been identified by the Company from the available information, which has been relied upon
by the auditors. According to such identification, the disclosures as per Section 22 of "The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development
(MSMED) Act, 2006" are as follows:

(Rs. In Lacs)
Detalls of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 31st March, | 31st March,
2006 2019 2018
The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to

any supnlier at the end of each accountina vear

- Principal Amount 62 81 -
- Interest thereon 0.33 -
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the
Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 along with
the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed
day during each accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the
year) but without adding the interest specified under Micro Small and
Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the
accounting year;

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are
actually paid to the smali enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a - -
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro Small and Medium
Enterprise Development Act, 2006,

The Company has availed the exemption given as per proviso to Rule 6 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for preparation of
consolidated financial statements which is required to be prepared as per section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, as the Company
being a subsidiary of another company and its ultimate or any intermediate holding company is filing consolidated financial statements
with the Registrar of Companies which are in compliance with the applicable Accounting Standards.

Employee Beneflts

A) Defined Contributlon Plan

i) The company has recognized, in statement of Profit & Loss for year ended 31st March, 2019 an amount of Rs. 355.38 Lacs (Previous
year Rs. 331.66 Lacs) under defined contribution plans.

(Rs. In Lacs)

Expense under defined contribution plans include: 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
a) Employer's contribution to provident fund 276.60 24912
b)  Employer's contribution to Employee State Insurance Corporation 74.80 78.69
¢) Employer's contribution to Labour Welfare Fund 3.98 3.85
355.38 331.66

The expense is disclosed in the line item - contribution to provident fund and other funds in Note 22.

B) Deflned Benefit Plan

iy ~ The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of the service gets a gratuity
on retirement / termination at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The Company has also provided for
long-term compensated absences

Gratuity (unfunded) Leaves (unfunded)
31st March,  31st March, 31st March, 31st March,
2019 2018 2019 2018
(Rs. InLacs) (Rs. In Lacs) (Rs. In Lacs) (Rs. In Lacs)
(i)  Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of obligations:
a) Obligation at the beginning 307.72 23257 188.98 193.67
b)  Current Service Cost 79.12 57.88 66.61 50.84
¢) Interest Cost 22.46 16.58 13.80 12.98
d) Past Service Cost - - - .
e} Actuarial (Gain) / Loss 56,65 17.56 11.65 (44.77)
f)  Benefits paid (33.24) (15.87) (31.71) (23.73)
g) Obligation at the year end 432,70 307.72 249.33 188.98

(i) Change in Plan Assets (Reconciliation of opening and closing balances):

a) Fair Value of Plan Assets at beginning - - - =
b)  Prior Period Adjustment - z = E
¢} Expected return on Plan Asset - - i 2
d) Contributions e o - .
e) Benefits paid - - - -
f)  Actuarial Gain / (Loss) on Plan Assets - - - -
g) Fair Value of Plan Assets at year end - - - E

(i) Reconciliation of fair value of assets and obligations:
a) Present value of obligation at year end 432,70 307.72 249.33 188.98
b)  Fair Value of Plan Assets at year end - - -

c) Asset/ Liability recognized
in the Balance Sheet 432,70 307.72 249.33 188.98
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(iv)
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)
q)

v)

(
a)
(vi)
b)
c)

d)
e)

Amount recognized in the income statement

Current Service Cost 79.12 57.88 66.61 50.84
Past Service Cost - - - =
Interest Cost 22 .46 15.58 13.80 12.98

Curtailment Cost (Credit) -
Expected return on Plan Assets - - . =
. 11.65 (44.77)

Actuarial (Gain) / Loss -
Expenses recognized during the year 101.58 73.46 92.05 19.04
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Unrealised actuarial Gain / (Loss) (56.65) (17.56) - -
Assumptions: As at 31st March, 2019 As at 31st March, 2018
Discounting Rate (per annum) 6.90% 7.30%
Future Salary Increase 5.00% 6.00%
Withdrawal / Employee Turnover Rate
Age upto 30 years 36.00% 36.00%
Age from 31 to 44 years 32.00% 32.00%
Age above 44 years 15.00% 15.00%
Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives

Mortality tab
ortality table used Mortality (2006-08) Mortality (2006-08)

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors
including supply and demand in the employment market.

Significant actuarial assumption for the determination of the defined obligation are discounted rate, expected salary escalation rate and withdrawal
rate. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumption occurring at the end
of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

The above information is certified by the actuarial valuer
Enterprise best estimate of contribution during next year is Rs. 124,73 Lacs for Gratuitiy & Rs. 30.28 Lacs for Leave Encashment.

The discount rate is based on prevailing market yield of Government Bonds as at the date of valuation.

1 Year ended Year ended
D 31st March, 2019 31t March, 2018
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Change in discount rate by 1.00% 18.31 19.46 13.77 14.66
Change in Salary escalation rate by 1.00% 14.93 23.07 14.71 14,06

Sensitivity due to mortality and withdrawals are not material & hence impact of change not calculated.

Sensitivity as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement and tife expectancy are not
applicable being a lump sum benefit on retirement.

Financial Instruments

i) Capital Management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as going concerns while maximising the return
to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Company consists of net debt (borrowings as Detailed in Notes 12 & 15 & 17 offset by cash and bank
balances) and total equity of the company.

The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements other than for covenants under various loan arrangements
of the Company.

The Company's Board reviews the capital structure of the Company on need basis, As part of this review, the Board considers the cost
of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. The gearing ratio at 31st March, 2019 of 42.35% (previous year 38,39% )
(See below).

Gearing Ratlo :

The gearing ratio at end of the reporting period was as follows : (Rs. In Lacs)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st

March, 2019 March, 2018

Debt * 11,470.58 9,140.97
Less : Cash and Cash Equivalents (Refer Note 8) 811.00 269.78
Net Debt 10,659.58 8,871.19
Total Equity 25,172.54 23,105.52
Net Debt to Equity Ratio 42.35% 38,39%

* Debt is defined as long-term and short-term borrowings.




i) Categories of Financial Instruments

(Rs. In Lacs)

Financial Assets As at 31st As at 31st

March, 2019  March, 2018
Measured at amortised cost
Loans- Non Current 255.86 148.25
Other Financial assets - Non Current 32,42 29.51
Trade receivables - Current 7,844.06 5,5656.40
Cash and cash equivalents 811.00 269.78
Other Bank balances - Current 314.39 948.16
Loans - Current 169.96 100.80
Other financial assets - Current 514.70 494 94
Total 9,932.39 7,547.84

At the end of the reporting period, there are no significant concentrations of financial assets designated at FVTPL. The carrying amount
reflected above represents the Company's maximum exposure to credit risk for such financial assets.
(Rs. In Lacs)

As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2019 March, 2018

Financial Liabilities

Mesured at amortised cost

Borrowings - Non Current 5,345.88 5,224.61
Borrowings - Current 3,787.60 -

Trade payables - Current 7,369.55 6,745.74
Other financial liabilities - Current 2,337.10 3,916,36
Total 18,840.13 15,886.71

iy Financial Risk Management Objectives

The Company's Corporate Treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic and international
financial markets, monitors and manages the financial risks including market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and other price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Board of Directors manages the financial risk of the Company through internal risk reports which analyse exposure by magnitude of
risk. The Company has limited exposure from the international market as the Company's operations are in India. The Company has
imited exposure towards foreign currency risk it earns approx. 29% of its revenue from in foreign currency from international patients.
Also capital expenditure includes capital goods purchased in foreign currency through the overseas vendors. The Company has not taken
any derivative contracts to hedge the exposure. However the exposure towards foreign currency foreign currency fluctuation is party
hedged naturally on account of receivable from customers and payable to vendors in foreign currency.

Market Risk
The Company's activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates.

a) Foreign Currency risk management

The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise.
Exchange rate exposures are managed within approved policy parameters.

The carrying amounts of the Company's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

As at 31st March, 2019 As at 31st March, 2018
I. Assets . Equivalent . Equivalent
A2 Rs. In Lacs o UL Rs. In Lacs
Receivables
(trade & others) ( A ) Usb 11.69 799.72 948 609.51
Hedges by derivative usD =
contracts (B )
i T T USsD 11.69 799.72 9.48 609.51
(C=A-B)
Forelgn As at 31st March, 2019 As at 31st March, 2018
Il. Liabilities . Equivalent ! Equivalent
Currency FC in lacs Rs. In Lacs FC in lacs Rs. In Lacs
Payables (trade & others) usp 2.74 191.94 28.49 1,874.65
(including Deferred
payment liability) (D) EURO R _ 0.02 1.63
Hedges by derivative USb ) ) ) )
contracts ( E ) EURO _
T — usD 2.74 191.94 28.49 1,874.65
(F=D-E) EURO ; : 0.02 1,63




. R . As at 31st March, 2019 As at 31st March, 2018
1ll. Contingent Liabilities Foreign - .
and Commitments Currency | FC in lacs Equivalent | .. | Equivalent
Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs
usp - -
Contingent Liabilities ( G)
EURO - -
usb 0.02 1.05 0.14 9.01
Commitments ( H ) JPY 3.00 1.89 -
EURO - - 048 38.84
Hedges by derivative use ) )
contracts (1) EURO ) ) ) )
UsD 0.02 1.05 0.14 9.01
Unhedged Payables B B}
(J=G4+H-1) JPY 3.00 1.89
EURO - = 0.48 38.84
USD 14.45 992.71 38.11 2,493.17
Total unhedged FC
Exposures 3.00 1.89 -
(K=C+F+J) JEY
EURO - - 0.50 40.46

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The company is mainly exposed to the USD & EURO currency

The following table details the company’s sensitivity to a 1% increase and decrease in the "Rs. against the USD. 1% is the sensitivity rate
used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel and represents management's assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 1% change in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity analysis includes
external loans. A positive number below indicates an increase in profit or equity where the Rs. strengthens 1% against the relevant
currency. For a 1% weakening of the Rs. against the relevant currency, there would be a comparable impact on the profit or equity, and

the balances below would be negative.

(Rs. In Lacs)
If increase by 1% Currency Impact USD
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2019 | March, 2018
Increase / (decrease) in profit or loss for the year o (12.65)
Increase / (decrease) in total equity as at the end of the reporting period 6.08 (12.65)
(Rs. In Lacs)
If decrease by 1% Currency Impact USD
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March; 2019 | March, 2018
Increase / (decrease) in profit or loss for the year (6.08) 12.65
Increase / (decrease) in total equity as at the end of the reporting period (6.08) 12 65
(Rs. In Lacs)
If increase by 1% Currency Impact JPY
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2019 | March, 2018
Increase / (decrease) in profit or loss for the year (©:02) .
Increase / (decrease) in total equity as at the end of the reporting period (0.02) -
(Rs. In Lacs)
If decrease by 1% Currency Impact JPY
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2019 | March, 2018
Increase / (decrease) in profit or loss for the year 0.02 -
Increase / (decrease) in total equity as at the end of the reporting period 0.02 R
(Rs. In Lacs)
If increase by 1% Currency Impact EURO
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2019 | March, 2018
Increase / (decrease) in profit or loss for the year N (0.02)
Increase / (decrease) in total equity as at the end of the reporting period - (0.02)




(Rs. In Lacs)

If decrease by 1%

Currency Impact EURO

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2019 | March, 2018

Increase / (decrease) in profit or loss for the year - 0.02

Increase / (decrease) in total equity as at the end of the reporting period - 0.02

b) Interest Rate rlsk management

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk because Company borrow funds at both fixed and floating interest rates. The risk
is managed by the Company by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings.

The Company’s exposures to interest rates on financial assets and financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note

Interest Rate sensltivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates at the end of the reporting period. For
floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year. A 100 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

{Rs. In Lacs)
If Increase by 1% In Interest rates Interest Impact
Partlculars As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2019 | March, 2018
Increase / (decrease) in profit or loss for the year (76.31) (90.90)
Increase / (decrease) in total equity as at the end of the reporting period (76.31) (90.90)

If decrease by 1% In Interest rates Interest Impact

Partlculars As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2019 | March, 2018

Increase / (decrease) in profit or loss for the year 76.31 90.90

Increase / (decrease) in total equity as at the end of the reporting period 76.31 90.90

c) Other Price Risk
The Company investment are in the group companies and are held for strategic purposes rather than for trading purposes.

d) Cerdlt RIsk Management
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. The
Company takes due care while extending any credit as per the approval matrix approved by Board of Directors.

e) Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which has established an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework for the management of the company's short-term, medium-term and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve
borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets
and liabilities. Note given below sets out details of additional undrawn facilities that the Company has at its disposal to further reduce
liquidity risk

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that
are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset, The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible,
that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring

The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities

(Rs. In Lacs)

Partlculars Within 1 year | 1-2years | More than 2 Total Carrying
years Amount (net

of
transaction
cost)
As at 31st March, 2019

Term Loan 2,152 68 2,112.94 3,236.44 7.502.06 7,498.56
Deferred payment liability 132.18 - = 132.18 132 18
Trade Payables 7.369 55 - = 7.369.55 7.369.55
Bank overdraft 3,787.60 - - 3,787.60 3,787.60
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 52.24 - - 52.24 52.24
Total 13,494.25 2,112.94 3,236.44 18,843 63 18.840.13

Niceg
fg‘"




(Rs. In Lacs)

Particulars Within 1 year| 1-2years | More than 2 Total Carrying
years Amount (net
of
transaction
cost)
As at 31st March, 2018
Term Loan 2,137.88 1,566.42 3,607.92 7.312.22 7,306.54
Deferred payment liability 1,728.00 55.95 4 1.783.95 1,783.95
Trade Payables 6,74574 - - 6,745.74 6,745.74
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 50.48 - - 50.48 50.48
Total 10,662.10 1,622.37 3,607.92 15,892,39 15,886.71
36 Disclosure u/s 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 (Rs. In Lacs}
Particulars Amount Outstanding as at  Amount Outstanding as at 31st
31st March, 2019 March, 2018
Investment in subsidiary company (Refer Note 3.1) 6.50 -

37 Disclosure under Ind AS - 115 (Revenue from contracts with customers)

{Rs. In Lacs)
a. Disaggregated revenue information 31st March,
2019
Type of Services or goods
Revenue from Healthcare Services - Multi-Speciality Hospital & Others §3,535.39
Revenue from Sale of Pharmacy Drugs & Medical Consumables 1.114.70
Total 54,650.09
Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Revenue from Customers based in India 33,340.79
Revenue from Customers based outside India 21,309.30
Total 54,650.09
Timing of Revenue Recognition
Services transferred over time (Healthcare Services & Others) 53,621.72
Goods (Pharmacy & Scrap) transferred at a point in time 1,128.36
Total 54,650.09
(Rs. In Lacs)
b. Trade receivables and Contract Customers 31st March,
2019
Trade Receivables 7,844.06
Unbilled revenue 498.55
Total 8,342.61

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 0- 90 days. Rs. 39.42 Lacs was recognised as provision for
expected credit losses on trade receivables.

Trade receivables and unbilled revenue are presented net of impairment in the Balance sheet.
The Company classifies the right to consideration in exchange for deliverables as either a receivable or as unbilled revenue.
A receivables is right to consideration that is unconditional upon passage of time.
Revenue for ongoing services at the reporting date yet to be invoiced is recorded as unbilled revenue.
c. Performance obligation and remaining performance obligation
The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be recognized as at
the end of the reporting period and an explanation as to when the Company expects to recognize these amounts in revenue. As on

31st March, 2019, there were no remaining performance obligation as the same is satisfied upon delivery of goods/services.

38 Contingent Liabilities (Rs. In Lacs)
Particulars 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018

A Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts

In respect of compensation demanded by the patient / their relatives, for negeligence in
treatment and are pending with various consumers disputes redressal forums. The company
has been advised by its legal counsel that it is possible,the action may succeed after
considering that insurance cover has also been taken by the company and the doctors, the
company is of the view that is adequately insured to mitigate the possibility of any loss to that
extent.

785.99 831.18
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The status of completion of obligation as at the end on licensing years for the EPCG licenses obtained by the company is as under:

Obligation vaiue

Licensing Year

Export Obligation to be completed till

Export Obligation completed in
foreign currency

108.52

2018-2019

2024-2025

NIL

47374

2018-2019

2024-2025

NIL

The Company carries a general provision for contingencies towards various claims against the company including claims raised by patients /
vendors / government authorities, not acknowledged as debts.

Opening Balance as at
01.04.2018

Additional provision made
during the year

Incurred / (reversed) against
provision during the year

Closing Balance as at
31.03.2019

941.45

0.00

270.67

670.78

Capitalisation of Expenditure :

During the year, the Company has capitalised the following expenses to the cost of property, plant and equipment / capital work in progress
(CWIP). Consequently, expenses disclosed under the respective notes are net of amount capitalised by the Company.

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
(Rs. in lacs) (Rs. in lacs)
Finance charges 65.92 138.59
Legal & professional consultancy Fees 14.52 131.31
Other expenses directly attributable 24.83 88.68
Total 105.27 358.58

Scheme of Arrangement and Amalgamation:

The Company and its holding company i.e. Artemis Health Sciences Ltd, its ultimate holding company i.e. Artemis Global Life Sciences
Ltd and its fellow subsidiary company i.e. Athena Eduspark Limited have decided to merge and the proposed Composite Scheme of
Amalgamation between the aforesaid Companies and their respective shareholders and creditors under section 230 to 232 and other
applicable provisions of Companies Act,2013 have been approved in the meeting of the Board of Directors held on 09th May, 2018.
Subsequent to receipt of No- Objection of the Stock Exchanges to the Scheme and approval of the shareholders and Creditors of the
Company at the meetings held on 27th Jan 2019.Petition(s) have been filed with the Delhi Bench of Hon'ble National Company Law
Tribunal seeking its final approval of the Scheme. No effect of the Scheme has been given in these financial statement as the Approval is
awaited till the date of signing of financial statments

Suspension of Capitalisation :
The Company started its expansion plan of Hospital in 2017 by construction of building, which was temporarily suspended pursuant to
issue of show cause by Haryana State Poliution Contro! Board (HSPCB) for not seeking permission from HSPCB prior to undertaking
construction activity. The Company has been pursuing the matter with the Ministry of Environment and Forest for seeking approval. In
this regard the company has submitted clarifications sought by the Ministry time to time. The Company has also represented in
proceedings with Ministry of Environment and Forest and approval for the same is awaited
Company has so far incurred Rs. 4441.38 Lacs on expansion which is pending capitalization.

Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified, where necessary, to confirm to this year's classification.
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